

to be repaid from the authority's revenues or from the proceeds of bonds issued hereunder. Such appropriation shall not cancel but shall remain available for use until expended.

Sec. 4. *This act shall become effective only after its approval by a majority of the governing body of the city of Saint Paul and upon compliance with the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021.*

Approved June 9, 1969.

CHAPTER 1139—S. F. No. 2660

[Coded in Part]

An act relating to the organization and operation of state government; appropriating money therefor and limiting the use thereof; providing for the transfer of certain moneys in the state treasury; adjusting the salaries of certain state officers and employees; authorizing land acquisition in certain cases including conservation, parks, wild life, and spawning areas, and historic sites; fixing and limiting the amount of fees to be collected in certain cases; providing penalties for misusing appropriated funds; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1967, Sections 414.01, Subdivisions 6 and 7; 526.181; and Laws 1969, Chapter 481, Section 2.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. **State government; organization and operation; appropriation.** Except as herein otherwise specifically provided, the sums hereinafter set forth in the columns designated "APPROPRIATIONS", or so much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated out of the general fund in the state treasury, or any other fund herein designated, for the purposes specified in the following sections of this act, to be available for the fiscal years indicated for each purpose. The figures "1969", "1970", and "1971", wherever used in this act, shall mean that the appropriation or appropriations listed thereunder shall be available for the year ending June 30, 1969, June 30, 1970, and June 30, 1971, respectively.

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

APPROPRIATIONS
Available for the Year
Ending June 30

	1969	1970	1971
	\$	\$	\$
Sec. 2. THE LEGISLATURE			
Subdivision 1. For the Senate Salaries, supplies and expense		1,300,000	1,400,000
Subd. 2. For the House of Representatives Salaries, supplies and expense		1,625,000	2,353,000
The above appropriations include funds for the standing committees of the senate and house of representatives.			
The above appropriations include funds for printing and binding.			
The state senate and house of representatives may, as needed, utilize the services of the state printer.			
In the above appropriations are included amounts for legislators' per diem living expenses (as distinguished from compensation) in the amount paid to members in the 66th session and in such additional amount as may be determined by the 67th session.			
Subd. 3. Legislative Advisory Committee		1,645	1,645
Subd. 4. State Claims Commission ..		15,000	
Subd. 5. Legislative Buildings Commission		52,000	
Subd. 6. Indian Affairs Commission		80,000	
This appropriation includes funds for payment of the expenses of the delegate to the Indian Council meeting.			
Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.			
Subd. 7. Legislative Retirement Study Commission		95,000	
Subd. 8. Mississippi River Parkway Commission		5,000	5,000
These amounts are appropriated from the trunk highway fund.			

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The balance remaining from the amount appropriated by Extra Session Laws 1967, Chapter 48, Section 2, Subdivision 8, shall not cancel but be available until June 30, 1971.

Subd. 9. Commission on Taxation and Production of Iron Ore and Other Minerals

25,000

This is appropriated from the iron range resources and rehabilitation account.

Subd. 10. General Contingent

300,000 300,000

Should the appropriations for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.

Subd. 11. Income Tax Contingent ..

100,000

This appropriation is for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the department of taxation, division of income tax, for salaries, supplies, and expense.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 12. Sales and Use Tax Contingent

50,000

This appropriation is for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the department of taxation, division of sales and use tax, for salaries, supplies, and expense.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 13. Game and Fish Contingent

100,000

This appropriation is from the game and fish fund for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the department of conservation, division of game and fish and division of enforcement and field service, for salaries, supplies, and expense.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 14. Motor Vehicle Contingent 25,000

This appropriation is from the highway user tax distribution fund for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the motor vehicle division for salaries, supplies, and expense.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 15. Grain Inspection Contingent 900,000

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 16. Criminal Justice Contingent 415,000

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

This appropriation is available to provide additional matching funds for the various state agencies for programs qualifying under the safe streets and omnibus crime control act of 1968.

This appropriation includes funds to supplement the funds appropriated in section 13, subdivision 4, item c.

Sub. 17. Postage Contingent 230,000

To be used by the commissioner of administration in supplementing the appropriations made for supplies and expense to the various state departments and agencies for any postage rate increases during the biennium ending June 30, 1971, where sufficient appropriations have not been made available therefor.

Of the above amount not more than \$115,000 shall be appropriated from the highway user tax distribution fund for the motor vehicle division of the office of secretary of state.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strike-out~~.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

The appropriations in subdivisions 10 to 17 shall be expended with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee as provided by Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 3.30.

Subd. 18. Career Executive Contingent 375,000

This sum is appropriated to the commissioner of administration for the purpose of supplementing the various appropriation accounts for the additional costs of assigning persons to the career executive compensation schedule. The commissioner shall from time to time certify such funds as he determines are necessary to finance those adjustments that cannot be financed within the funds appropriated to the department or agency. Upon certification the state auditor shall transfer such funds to such accounts as the commissioner may designate. Funds so transferred are hereby reappropriated to the accounts to which they are transferred.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 3. GOVERNOR

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense 360,000 370,000

Subd. 2. Personal expenses connected with office 11,000 11,000

Subd. 3. Fort Snelling Sesquicentennial 50,000

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 4. Governor's portrait 2,000

Subd. 5. Upper Great Lakes Regional Commission 71,167 71,167

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 6. Souris-Red-Rainy Basin Commission — state share	60,000
Subd. 7. Great Lakes Basin Com- mission — state share	40,000
Subd. 8. Technical services	75,000

This appropriation is available only if federal funds are available under the Technical Services Act.

The governor is authorized to implement the Technical Services Act of 1965, P.L. 89-182; to cooperate with other states in implementation of such programs; to appoint an advisory council; and to carry out all other provisions of P.L. 89-182. Members of the advisory council shall not be compensated for their service but shall be reimbursed for their actual and necessary expenses incurred in connection with attending meetings or conducting the business of the council in accordance with rules and regulations governing the travel of state officers and employees.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 9. Development and assign- ment of a program relating to counsel- ing, education, and advice regarding drug abuse and addiction	40,000
--	--------

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

**Sec. 4. STATE PLANNING
AGENCY**

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense	804,634
--	---------

Of the amount appropriated in this section, \$125,000 is transferred from funds on deposit in the development revolving account established by Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 472.13.

The maximum amount that may be expended from state funds for each program or activity is as follows:

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Statewide Planning Program		
Strategic Planning Subprogram		
Information		
Systems Design ..	\$15,883	\$18,530
Analysis and Interpretation ...		
	5,330	6,377
State Land Management		
	20,510	24,690
Policy Planning and Coordination Subprogram		
Policy Development—		
Issue Planning ...	50,000	50,000
Policy Formulations—		
Six Year Action Plan	15,085	18,711
Regional Development Subprogram		
Regional Studies ...	10,000	10,000
Housing Needs	14,453	16,878
Technical Studies ...	6,466	8,018
Local Government Development Program		
Training	40,000	41,700
Technical Assistance	20,000	22,000
Planning Assistance	25,000	25,000
Regional Grant Program		
	125,000	
Functional Systems Development Program		
Health and Social Services		
	30,000	32,000
Criminal Justice ...	39,865	41,138
General Support Programs		
	36,000	36,000

The state planning director may transfer unexpended balances among the above activities. Such transfers shall be reported forthwith to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

The state auditor shall establish a single control account for the items listed in this section. The state planning agency shall maintain individual control accounts for the items listed in this section.

When instructed by the state planning agency to perform planning work, state agencies will be expected to use existing staff. If, however, the state planning

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~

officer finds that said state agency cannot perform the work with existing staff, direct employment of persons is authorized for a fixed term, and they shall be in the unclassified service of the state. The planning agency shall make an evaluation at the conclusion of the project involved, or at the end of each biennium, as to whether or not any such positions should be retained as permanent planning positions within the complement of the operating agency involved.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 2. Basin planning 50,000

Expenses for participation in basin planning by the water resources coordinating committee and the governor's representation.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 5. GOVERNOR'S COMMISSION ON EMPLOYMENT OF HANDICAPPED PERSONS 27,514 27,628

Sec. 6. CIVIL DEFENSE

Subdivision 1. Salaries 145,672 150,960

Approved Complement—12

Plus such additional personnel as may be financed by federal funds for the period that federal funds are available.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense 24,011 24,111

Sec. 7. LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR

Subdivision 1. Salary and expenses 20,000 20,000

Sec. 8. STATE AUDITOR

Subdivision 1. Salaries 506,190 523,739

Approved Complement—58

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense 80,945 85,175

Provided that the auditor's biennial report shall be printed in summary form

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

notwithstanding any law to the contrary.

Subd. 3. Contributory share of public employees retirement association for legislative members 20,674.23

Subd. 4. Civil Air Patrol

a. Supplies, expense and equipment 28,350 13,350

To be disbursed by the state auditor on certification of commander, the Minnesota wing of the civil air patrol.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 9. STATE TREASURER

Subdivision 1. Salaries 188,217 194,374

Approved Complement—23

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense 50,803 50,983

Sec. 10. PUBLIC EXAMINER

Subdivision 1. Salaries 401,728 417,397

Approved Complement—38

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense 34,125 29,850

The appropriation in this section includes money for additional complement and related expenses to enable the public examiner to perform for the legislature a post audit function to the extent that legislative request from *appropriate committees and complement* permits. The director of civil service will consult with the senate committee on finance and the house of representatives committee on appropriations as well as with the *public examiner* in establishing compensation ranges for this department.

Sec. 11. DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION

Subdivision 1. Salaries 3,006,990 3,112,600

Approved Complement—384

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense 1,319,424 1,374,626

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The above appropriation includes expenses for collection of rural cooperative electric taxes. Taxes retained by department are to be deposited in the general fund.

Subd. 3. Income Tax Division		
a. Salaries	2,369,340	2,462,301
Approved Complement—284		
b. Supplies and expense	620,673	633,048
Subd. 4. Petroleum Division		
a. Salaries	793,960	826,422
Approved Complement—107		
Nineteen of the approved positions are for the enforcement of the highway user tax law. The approved complement shall be reduced upon entering into reciprocal agreements with any adjoining states and the complement reduction shall be reported promptly to the legislative advisory committee.		
b. Supplies and expense	200,000	200,000
Subd. 5. Sales and Use Tax Division		
a. Salaries	1,455,675	1,514,625
Approved Complement—175		
b. Supplies and expense	335,067	332,967
Sec. 12. TAX COURT		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	35,856	36,520
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	3,990	3,990
Sec. 13. ATTORNEY GENERAL		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	600,115	642,837
Approved Complement—44		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	65,875	67,125
Subd. 3. Special Contingent Appropriation	40,000	

This appropriation shall not be available for paying the costs of special legal, accounting, and investigative personnel retained in cases arising under Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 501.12 hereafter filed unless the attorney general

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

shall decide in such a case that all the beneficiaries are not adequately represented, or that there is a likelihood that the purpose of the trust may be frustrated without his intervention and that the state has a substantial interest in carrying out the purpose of the trust.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 4. Minnesota Peace Officers Training Board

a. Salaries	20,604	20,896
Approved Complement—2		
b. Supplies and expense	26,000	24,000
c. Reimbursements to local government	40,000	

Reimbursement for costs of substitute local protection while officers attend regular training courses.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 5. Criminal Apprehension Bureau

a. Salaries	631,293	698,280
Approved Complement—1970—74 1971—79		
b. Supplies and expense	416,242	402,295

Of the amounts provided by item a, \$63,500 for the first year and \$66,500 for the second year are appropriated from the trunk highway fund for highway safety activities.

Of the amounts provided by item b, \$26,500 each year is appropriated from the trunk highway fund for highway safety activities.

c. Police school supplies and expense	55,256	54,614
---------------------------------------	--------	--------

Of the amounts provided by item c, \$9,500 for the first year and \$10,000 for the second year are appropriated

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

from the trunk highway fund for highway safety activities.

d. Sheriffs teletype operations 117,360 124,506

Approved Complement—14

Any unexpended balance in the milk and dairy investigation account on June 30, 1969, shall not cancel and shall be available for the biennium beginning July 1, 1969.

Sec. 14. DISTRICT COURT

To be disbursed by the state auditor

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense 1,651,000 1,651,000

Should the appropriation for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.

Sec. 15. RETIRED SUPREME AND DISTRICT COURT JUDGES AND COMMISSIONER

Subdivision 1. Salaries 307,000 307,000

Should the appropriation for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.

This appropriation shall be used for the payment of salaries, retirement benefits, and survivorship benefits to retired supreme and district court judges, commissioner, and widows of supreme and district court judges.

Sec. 16. SUPREME COURT

Subdivision 1. Salaries 574,724 606,390

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense 41,315 27,470

Subd. 3. Publishing Minnesota reports 12,600 25,800 19,350

Subd. 4. Referee fees for cases of original jurisdiction 500

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 5. Court commissioner salaries 12,181 12,181

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

<p>Subd. 6. Supreme court counsel . . .</p> <p><i>Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.</i></p> <p>Subd. 7. Supreme court contingent . . .</p> <p><i>Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.</i></p> <p>Sec. 17. PUBLIC DEFENDER</p> <p>Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense</p> <p><i>Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.</i></p> <p>Sec. 18. JUDICIAL COUNCIL . . .</p> <p><i>Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.</i></p> <p>Sec. 19. REVISOR OF STATUTES</p> <p>Subdivision 1. Salaries</p> <p>Subd. 2. Supplies and expense</p> <p>Subd. 3. Bill Drafting—salaries and expenses for the 1971 Legislature</p> <p><i>Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.</i></p> <p>Sec. 20. DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION</p> <p>Subdivision 1. Salaries</p> <p>Approved Complement—375</p> <p><i>The commissioner of administration shall submit to the senate finance committee and the house appropriations committee, not later than November 1, 1970, a detailed report of each management study made, recommendations made as a result of each study and changes instituted because of each study.</i></p>	<p>2,500</p> <p>2,000</p> <p>148,967</p> <p>1,000</p> <p>144,818</p> <p>4,195</p> <p>102,500</p> <p>3,022,448</p>	<p>156,691</p> <p>1,000</p> <p>152,183</p> <p>4,355</p> <p>3,141,349</p>
---	---	--

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Any moneys appropriated by this subdivision for the salaries of state employees whose duties it is to perform cleaning and security services in and for state buildings may be used by the commissioner of administration to contract and pay for such services if he determines that the contract method is more economical than having such services performed by state employees.

Upon the acquisition of the capitol square building the commisioner of administration shall deposit in the state treasury and credit to the general fund all money collected from private tenants as rent from space in the building.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense 1,182,073 1,221,378

The commissioner of administration may lease portions of state owned buildings in the capitol complex, the capitol square building, and at 1246 University Avenue, St. Paul, Minnesota, to state departments and agencies and charge rent therefor on the basis of space occupied, and, notwithstanding the provisions of any law to the contrary, all moneys collected as rents shall be deposited in the state treasury and credited to the general fund.

Subd. 3. Printing biennial budget 22,000

Subd. 4. Printing session laws—
bound volume 40,000

Subd. 5. State employees insurance
benefits 25,772 25,378

Subd. 6. Minnesota state employees
merit award board 21,785 22,447

The full time position may be in the classified or unclassified service.

Subd. 7. Governor-elect, personnel
and expenses 15,000

Subd. 8. Computer services—payroll
preparation 30,876 187,159 191,511

To reimburse the division of computer services for the cost of preparing payrolls for state departments, agencies, and institutions whose salaries are provided by annual appropriations made by the legislature and who use the

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

facilities of the division. However, in the case of payrolls which are financed in whole or in part with federal funds, that portion of the cost of payroll preparation which is chargeable to federal funds shall not be reimbursed from subdivision 8 but shall be reimbursed from such federal funds, and such amounts as are necessary are hereby appropriated from such funds for that purpose. The cost of preparing payrolls for state departments, agencies, and institutions whose salaries are provided by open, standing, continuing, or revolving appropriations or so-called dedicated receipt accounts shall be reimbursed to the division of computer services from such appropriations or dedicated receipt accounts and such amounts as are necessary are hereby appropriated from such appropriations and accounts for that purpose.

Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 8 for the year ending June 30, 1969, \$1,408 is from the game and fish fund and \$65 is from the state airports account.

Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 8 for the year ending June 30, 1970, \$9,631 is from the game and fish fund and \$439 is from the state airports account.

Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 8 for the year ending June 30, 1971, \$9,855 is from the game and fish fund and \$449 is from the state airports account.

Subd. 9. Minnesota Statutes Revolving	53,600
Subd. 10. State Building Code	25,000

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 11. State Agency Revolving Fund	10,000	10,000
---	--------	--------

To reimburse the state agency revolving fund for the cost of collecting employees' social security contributions and the state's matching share for re-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

imbursement to the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury for the state departments, agencies, and institutions whose salaries are provided by annual appropriations made by the legislature. However, in the case of state departments, agencies, and institutions which are financed in whole or in part with federal funds, that portion of the cost of such collection which is chargeable to federal funds shall be reimbursed from federal funds, and such amounts as are necessary are *appropriated from such funds for that purpose.*

The cost of collecting employees' social security contributions and the state's matching share for reimbursement to the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury for state departments, agencies, and institutions whose salaries are provided by open, standing, continuing, or revolving appropriations or so-called dedicated receipt accounts shall be reimbursed to the state agency revolving fund from such appropriations or dedicated receipt accounts, and such amounts as are necessary are *appropriated from such appropriations and accounts for that purpose.*

Of the amounts appropriated by this subdivision \$376 each year is from the game and fish fund, \$2,667 each year is from the trunk highway fund, and \$137 each year is from the highway user tax distribution fund.

Subd. 12. State Ceremonial Building	60,000	60,000
-------------------------------------	--------	--------

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 13. Computer Acceleration . .	900,000	
-------------------------------------	---------	--

To be expended after consultation with the governor's committee on computer utilization for computer rental and operations, systems development, programming, outside consultant services, and other expenses related to computer use.

Not more than \$300,000 is to be expended for projects of the state higher education system.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~

A report of the acceleration accomplished in and planned for the 1969-71 biennium as a result of this appropriation shall be transmitted in writing to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives no later than November 1, 1970. Progress reports shall be transmitted in writing no later than ten days following the end of each quarter.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 14. Operation and Maintenance, Capitol Square Building—salaries, supplies, and expense	283,500	348,300
--	---------	---------

Subd. 15. Remodeling—supreme court	8,400	
--	-------	--

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 21. EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense	655	655
---	-----	-----

Sec. 22. BOARD OF INVESTMENT

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense	176,150	178,808
---	---------	---------

Approved Complement—11

Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the board of investment may lease or purchase a duplicating machine.

Sec. 23. SECRETARY OF STATE

Subdivision 1. Salaries	143,655	148,791
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—18

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	17,885	18,760
-------------------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 3. Printing legislative manual		58,940
--	--	--------

Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the appropriation in this subdivision shall be available until the legislative manual is printed and distributed.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 4. Publishing constitutional amendments	10,080	
Subd. 5. Election expense and nomination fees	23,788	36,290
Subd. 6. Mobile home registration		
a. Salaries, supplies and expense	50,011	51,414
Approved Complement—7		
Subd. 7. Motor Vehicle Division		
a. Salaries	1,321,564	1,368,081
Approved Complement—188		
b. Supplies and expense	591,103	642,155
c. License plates		
1. Salaries	119,158	125,493
Approved Complement—10		
2. Supplies and expense	724,100	888,500
The moneys appropriated by subdivision 7, items a, b, and c, are from the highway user tax distribution fund.		
d. Dealers Division		
1. Salaries	23,173	24,046
Approved Complement—3		
2. Supplies and expense	1,447	900
e. Chauffeurs License Division		
1. Salaries	73,678	76,653
Approved Complement—13		
2. Supplies and expense	37,355	36,481

Sec. 24. DEPARTMENT OF CIVIL SERVICE

Subdivision 1. Salaries	572,340	594,820
Approved Complement—65		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	73,996	76,750

The director of civil service may leave authorized positions vacant and use the money for the leasing of equipment if such is found to be more economical than the filling of authorized positions.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 3. Management and personnel training program

a. Salaries, supplies and expense . . .	100,000	100,000
---	---------	---------

The appropriation in this section includes money for full-time employees required for development of a state management and personnel training program. The legislature looks for a planned and coordinated development of this program among the departments of the government.

Sec. 25. ARCHIVES COMMISSION

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense	125,769	118,923
---	---------	---------

Approved Complement—12

On or before May 1, 1970, each department or agency shall submit a records management program to the state archivist for his review.

Sec. 26. MUNICIPAL COMMISSION

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense	57,108	66,058
---	--------	--------

Approved Complement—2

Sec. 27. ADJUTANT GENERAL

Subdivision 1. Salaries	242,716	254,140
-----------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—25

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	12,770	14,770
---	--------	--------

Subd. 3. National Guard

a. Salaries	125,344	129,820
-----------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—11

b. Supplies and expense	74,705	75,975
-----------------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 4. Camp Ripley

a. Salaries	100,702	104,713
-----------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—18

Plus such additional personnel as may be financed entirely from federal funds for the period federal funds are available.

b. Supplies and expense	60,507	54,507
-----------------------------------	--------	--------

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 5. Armory Maintenance and Repairs

a. Salaries	708,702	736,436
b. Supplies and expense	436,891	441,357

Notwithstanding any other provision of this act or any other law, the appropriations made in this section shall be available for allotment, encumbrance and expenditure upon passage of this act, for the purpose of financing federal reimbursement contracts.

Sec. 28. DIVISION OF BANKING

Subdivision 1. Salaries	771,166	832,245
Approved Complement—1970—76 1971—80		

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	10,000	95,020	99,290
-------------------------------------	--------	--------	--------

Sec. 29. DIVISION OF INSURANCE

Subdivision 1. Salaries	538,514	558,419
Approved Complement—55		

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	69,700	74,480
-------------------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 3. Services of Certified Public Accountants	5,000	
---	-------	--

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 4. Fire Marshal

a. Salaries	223,233	231,771
Approved Complement—23		

b. Supplies and expense	41,340	40,795
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Sec. 30. DIVISION OF SECURITIES

Subdivision 1. Salaries	183,712	190,241
Approved Complement—18		

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	17,620	16,685
-------------------------------------	--------	--------

Sec. 31. PUBLIC SERVICE

Subdivision 1. Administration, including motor bus and truck

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~

a. Salaries	673,008	697,034
<i>Approved Complement—69</i>		
Of this appropriation \$19,314 the first year and \$19,990 the second year is from the highway safety account.		
b. Supplies and expense	73,429	74,809
Of this appropriation \$9,000 each year is from the highway safety account.		
Subd. 2. Weights and Measures		
a. Salaries	361,746	376,110
<i>Approved Complement—39</i>		
b. Supplies and expense	92,796	108,506
Subd. 3. Grain Inspection		
a. Salaries	1,587,522	1,655,872
b. Supplies and expense	137,500	137,500
c. Overtime	214,000	214,000

The commission is directed to adjust its schedule of fees before the end of each fiscal year to provide that the initial charge made for services to be rendered during the next fiscal year shall be sufficient to provide an income during the latter fiscal year equal to the amount of the appropriation for that year for salaries, overtime, expenses, which shall include, without limitation an amount for state retirement and social security contributions. If the income from the fees provided for herein during any fiscal year shall be more than 103 percent of such appropriation for that year, the commission in adjusting its schedule of fees for use in the next fiscal year shall fix the fees to produce income in the amount of such appropriation less the amount of such excess over 103 percent of the appropriation first referred to herein. If the income from the fees provided for herein during any fiscal year shall be less than the appropriation for that year, the commission, in adjusting its schedule of fees for use in the next fiscal year shall fix the fees to produce income in the amount of such appropriation for the latter year

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

plus the amount of the difference between the appropriation for the year first referred to herein and the total income from such fees during that year, and plus 3 percent of the total appropriation for both the latter and the first year referred to herein. Such schedule of fees shall provide that any elevator, mill, or other commission business requesting the service of a weigher, shall pay a minimum charge per hour for each weigher requested or assigned. Any fees earned by such weigher shall be credited against the charge made therefor. Such minimum charge shall be assessed only after taking into consideration all fees earned and all hours charged. Excess fees earned over hours charged shall be carried forward from month to month during any one fiscal year. When deemed necessary by the chief of grain inspection, a charge for actual overtime costs may be made.

Sec. 32. LABOR AND INDUSTRY

Subdivision 1. Salaries	1,147,827	1,195,948
Approved Complement—1970—118 1971—122		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	257,403	218,753
There is included in the appropriation in subdivisions 1 and 2, funds for the licensing and regulation of collection agencies, collection of certain wages, and operating expenses for an occupational safety board.		
Subd. 3. Voluntary Apprenticeship Advisory Group—Per Diem	600	600
Subd. 4. Division of Boiler Inspection		
a. Salaries	181,410	188,614
Approved Complement—21		
b. Supplies and expense	26,000	26,000
Subd. 5. Workmen's Compensation Revolving	185,000	
Sec. 33. LIQUOR CONTROL		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	318,905	330,803
Approved Complement—35		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	50,000	55,000

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 34. LABOR CONCILIATOR		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	197,291	204,415
Approved Complement—15		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	32,505	32,600
Sec. 35. DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT		
Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense	896,610	841,752
Not more than one research project may be undertaken. The commissioner shall report to the next legislative session specific requests for research projects for the next biennium.		
Subd. 2. Advertising and publications	400,000	420,000
Not more than \$30,000 each year may be expended for promotional expense.		
Subd. 3. Regional matching	150,000	150,000
Subd. 4. Port Authority of Duluth .	65,000	65,000
These amounts are appropriated to the <i>port authority of Duluth, organized under Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 458.09 to 458.19, and shall be used for the promotion of seaway trade after consultation with the department of economic development.</i>		
Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.		
The port authority of Duluth shall file a report of activities financed by this appropriation with the legislature on or before November 1, 1970.		
Sec. 36. DEPARTMENT OF AERONAUTICS		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	284,344	295,427
Approved Complement—25		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	152,172	80,000
Subd. 3. Aeronautics proceedings ..	7,500	7,500
This amount is available for the employment of consultants, expert witness fees, preparation of exhibits and other costs pertaining to aeronautics proceedings.		

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 4. Aeronautics safety and education 20,000 20,000

Subd. 5. Airport construction and improvements

- a. Key system airports 2,361,400
- b. Secondary airports system 887,450
- c. State landing strips 459,800

This appropriation is to be expended in accordance with Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 360.305, Subdivision 4 (1), (2), (4), and (5).

The commissioner of aeronautics may transfer unexpended balances between the above items with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee as provided by Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 3.30.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 6. Navigational Aids 477,546

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 7. Striping airport runways .. 58,000

Reimbursements from municipalities for striping runways shall be deposited in the state airports account.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 8. Hangar construction revolving 250,000

Subd. 9. Promotional materials 6,000

This is to be used in cooperation with the department of economic development.

The amounts appropriated by this section are from the state airports account.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 37. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Subdivision 1. Salaries	1,315,384	1,373,301
Approved Complement—130		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	230,659	231,294
Any butter purchased may, if marketable under the laws of this state, be sold and proceeds of such sale be credited to this appropriation.		
The standing appropriation made by Laws 1963, Chapter 832, Section 4, in the sum of \$75,000 per biennium for the administration and enforcement of Minnesota Statutes 1967, Chapter 33, is rescinded and shall no longer be of any force and effect.		
Subd. 3. Division of Meat Industry		
a. Salaries	139,007	228,705
Approved Complement—1970—26 1971—31		
b. Supplies and expense	15,328	22,928
Subd. 4. Poultry Breeding and Inspection		
a. Salaries, supplies and expense	75,182	77,692
Subd. 5. Weed Control on tax exempt and tax forfeited land	9,000	9,000
Subd. 6. White Pine Blister Rust Control	10,000	10,452
Technical assistance for this program shall be furnished by university of Minnesota entomologists.		
Subd. 7. Forest Pest Control	14,000	
Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.		
Subd. 8. Market and Produce Inspection		
a. Salaries, supplies and expense	45,000	45,000
The fees for services performed by activities financed by subdivision 8 shall be reviewed and, if necessary, adjusted each six months to the end that		

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

such fees shall insofar as it is practicable cover the cost of the services rendered. All moneys collected by authority of Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 21.53, and all balances now on hand received from such source are appropriated for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 21.47 to 21.58. All moneys collected by authority of Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 27.07, for services rendered pursuant to written contracts are appropriated for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1967, Chapter 27, and the moneys so collected and appropriated shall be in addition to and not in substitution for the sums appropriated in this section. All funds, sums of money or other resources paid or furnished to the department of agriculture, dairy and food by the federal government shall be credited to and become a part of the various appropriations provided for in this section, and all such funds, sums of money or other resources so credited to the various appropriations shall be in addition to and not in substitution for any sum appropriated or otherwise made available by this section. Provided that the fees for services performed by activities financed by subdivision 4 shall be fixed by the commissioner of agriculture with the approval of the commissioner of administration at the beginning of each fiscal year and reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, at the end of each six-month period in order that the fees prescribed shall insofar as practicable cover the cost of all services rendered.

Subd. 9. Butterfat regulations	30,924	31,934
Subd. 10. Market development	60,000	60,000

Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the person hired to promote market development shall be in the unclassified service.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 11. Pesticide control program	30,000	
-------------------------------------	--------	--

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 38. DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION

There is appropriated to the commissioner of conservation the following amounts for the following purposes, said amounts to be under the control of and to be expended by direction of the commissioner of conservation.

Subdivision 1. Conservation—Administration

a. Salaries 965,315 1,003,387

Approved Complement—94

Of the amounts provided in subdivision 1a, \$482,658 for the first year and \$501,694 for the second year are appropriated from the game and fish fund.

b. Supplies and expense 257,818 218,030

Of the amounts provided in subdivision 1b, \$128,909 for the first year and \$109,015 for the second year are appropriated from the game and fish fund.

Included in item 1b is sufficient money for the publication of five issues of the Conservation Volunteer during each fiscal year. An additional issue during each fiscal year may be published with funds provided by the appropriation contained in the boat and water safety account.

This appropriation includes \$37,663 for completion of the conservation building at the Minnesota state fair grounds, which amount shall not be expended until equal matching funds are received from the Minnesota state agricultural society.

c. Snowmobile Program

1. Salaries, supplies and expense 825,000

Approved Complement—14

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

be available for the second year of the biennium.

d. Boat and Water Safety Program

1. Salaries, supplies and expense, and county allotments	590,000	560,000
--	---------	---------

Approved Complement—19

Of this amount not more than \$25,000 each year may be used by the commissioner to reimburse county sheriffs for search and rescue operations.

e. Iron range trail and mineland reclamation	40,000	
--	--------	--

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 2. Division of Waters, Soils, and Minerals

a. Salaries	853,707	886,030
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—79

b. Supplies and expense	81,972	77,939
-------------------------------	--------	--------

The appropriations in items a and b include moneys for the repair or modification of facilities constructed for lake and stream improvement projects.

c. Hydrologic studies	170,000	
-----------------------------	---------	--

The above amounts include provisions for the items of stream gaging, lake level control and ground and underground waters survey, and quality of water survey.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

The balance remaining from the amount appropriated by Extra Session Laws 1967, Chapter 48, Section 38, Subdivision 2, item e, shall not cancel on June 30, 1969, but shall be available until June 30, 1971.

d. Lake and channel improvement ..	100,000	
------------------------------------	---------	--

This appropriation is for improvement of lakes including a pilot project on

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Lake Shetek and for channel improvement on the Minnesota, Ottertail, Buffalo, Zumbro, and Poplar rivers and Sand Creek and their tributaries and the tributaries of the Red river.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 3. Division of Lands and Forestry

a. Salaries	2,905,753	3,185,697
-------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement—334

Seasonal funds reduced by Extra Session Laws 1967, Chapter 48, are herein restored provided that the additional complement of 20 forest guards positions provided by Extra Session Laws 1967, Chapter 48, be reduced by 12 positions as soon as practicable.

b. Supplies and expense	625,000	600,000
-------------------------------	---------	---------

All receipts from rents of buildings under custodianship of the division of forestry are reappropriated to subdivision 3b hereof.

c. Fire fighting	100,000	100,000
------------------------	---------	---------

Any balance remaining in item c for the first year shall not cancel but be available for the second year.

Any balance remaining on June 30, 1971, may be used for the purchase of fire fighting equipment.

Subd. 4. Division of Game and Fish

a. Salaries	3,638,492	3,770,479
-------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement—376

b. Supplies and expense	30,000	1,498,039	1,166,049
-------------------------------	--------	-----------	-----------

c. Muskellunge propagation and management program		7,650	7,650
---	--	-------	-------

This appropriation shall not lapse but shall continue until expended and is intended for expansion of the existing muskellunge propagation and management program.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

d. Creel census survey—Lake of the Woods	15,927	8,585
--	--------	-------

Receipts from rough fish removal shall be deposited to the credit of the game and fish receipts account.

None of the moneys provided in this subdivision shall be expended for acquiring lands or interests therein by eminent domain proceedings.

The amounts appropriated in this subdivision are to be charged against the game and fish fund. All receipts credited to the game and fish fund not herein authorized to be used or otherwise transferred shall be retained in the game and fish fund as a surplus.

All of the income, receipts, and fees collected by the division of game and fish, not appropriated or transferred to other divisions or departments of state government by the provisions of this act, except attributable costs provided by Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 16.20, shall be deposited in the state treasury to and for the benefit of the division of game and fish.

e. Acquisition of wetlands for wildlife habitat	342,000	342,000
---	---------	---------

The above amounts are appropriated from the wildlife acquisition account. This appropriation includes an amount sufficient to cover all necessary costs of land acquisition, care, improvements; and payments to local subdivisions of government in lieu of taxes.

f. Public access

For acquisition, improvement, development, and maintenance of sites for public access to public waters and for lake improvement.

All moneys credited to the game and fish fund under Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 296.421, Subdivision 4, are appropriated to the commissioner of conservation for the foregoing purposes.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 5. Division of Parks and Recreation

a. Salaries	1,666,232	1,733,560
-------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement—88

b. Supplies and expense	369,308	353,088
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Funds appropriated in this subdivision may be used for plowing snow in the town of Breitung from U.S. highway 169 over Main street to Tower Soudan state park mine site.

Subd. 6. Enforcement and Field Service

a. Salaries	1,715,318	1,781,621
-------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement—154

No overtime shall be paid to conservation officers or conservation officer pilots.

b. Supplies and expense	500,000	450,000
-------------------------------	---------	---------

c. Firearms safety	130,000	
--------------------------	---------	--

Approved Complement—2

Any balance remaining in item c for the first year shall not cancel but be available for the second year.

The amounts appropriated in this subdivision are to be charged against the game and fish fund.

Sec. 39. MINNESOTA WATER RESOURCES BOARD

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense	37,292	38,422
---	--------	--------

All hearings of the water resources board shall be solely in the performance of expressed statutory duties.

Sec. 40. STATE SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION COMMITTEE

Subdivision 1. Salaries	52,807	54,260
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—6

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	17,000	17,200
------------------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 3. Soil Conservation Districts	220,000	230,000
--------------------------------------	---------	---------

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

The amounts appropriated under this subdivision shall be expended under the direction of the state soil and water conservation committee through the soil conservation districts in aid of all conservation practices, as requested by cooperators, including technical assistance for all practices requiring the same on any land within the respective districts. The state committee shall inform each district governing body of the foregoing provisions annually or more often as may be necessary to secure compliance therewith.

Subd. 4. Watershed Planning Team 40,000 40,000

The amounts appropriated shall be available for watershed protection activities of the state, and shall be used for surveys, investigations, planning (the assembling of preliminary engineering, economic, and related watershed data into a reasonable watershed plan), and advanced engineering study (the preparation of detailed designs, specifications, and engineering cost estimates of works of improvements) of watershed projects.

No money shall be approved for construction or installation of any works of improvement, or for soil surveys, or for any costs that local groups of people in a watershed are responsible for in any watershed project.

Funds shall be controlled by the state soil and water conservation committee; and can be used to reimburse the United States soil conservation service upon agreement between the state soil and water conservation committee and the United States soil conservation service state conservationist in Minnesota. Cooperation with the United States soil conservation service in Minnesota in employment of personnel and in determining work schedules to accelerate the study, planning, and detailed design function of watershed protection activities in Minnesota is authorized.

A report of the state participation and progress in a watershed planning team shall be filed with the governor and the legislature by December 1, 1970.

Sec. 41. BOARD OF HEALTH

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subdivision 1. Administration

a. Salaries	1,383,585	1,430,837
-------------------	-----------	-----------

Approved Complement—213

Of the amounts provided by this item, \$34,278 for the first year and \$35,591 for the second year are appropriated from the trunk highway fund for high-way safety activities.

b. Supplies and expense	235,460	227,189
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Of the amounts provided in this item, \$26,387 for the first year and \$26,163 for the second year are appropriated from the trunk highway fund for high-way safety activities.

Grants in aid now or hereafter received from the federal government for any health assistance or health program or for administration under the jurisdiction of the department of health shall in the first instance be credited to a federal grant fund and shall be transferred therefrom to the credit to the proper account of the department of health upon certification of the executive secretary that the amounts so requested to be transferred have been earned or are required for the purposes and program intended. Moneys received by such federal grant fund need not be budgeted as such, provided the transfers from such fund are budgeted for allotment purposes in the appropriate appropriations.

All receipts received from the National Office of Vital Statistics for microfilmed transcripts of vital statistics records shall be deposited in and for the benefit of the general fund.

The appropriations in this subdivision include funds for cytogenetic counseling and testing. A report shall be made on or before November 1, 1970, to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives of the results of the cytogenetic program.

Subd. 2. Hotel inspection

a. Salaries	173,668	180,414
-------------------	---------	---------

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Approved Complement—21

b. Supplies and expense	37,348	36,875
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 3. Hospital and medical facilities construction and supervision

a. Salaries	147,188	151,824
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—12

b. Supplies and expense	5,540	5,540
-------------------------------	-------	-------

Subd. 4. Preventive health services for state employees

42,642	43,760
--------	--------

Approved Complement—4

Of the amounts provided by this subdivision, \$16,337 for the first year and \$16,914 for the second year are appropriated from the trunk highway fund.

This appropriation includes one-half of the salary costs of a physician. Any moneys received for additional salary costs from other sources are hereby appropriated.

Subd. 5. Tuberculosis control—state aid

30,000	30,000
--------	--------

Subd. 6. Tuberculosis control unit .

81,349	82,441
--------	--------

Approved Complement—7

Provided that the first two positions other than the position of chief of service in this unit that become vacant shall remain vacant, and the approved complement shall be reduced accordingly.

Sec. 42. COMMISSION ON ALCOHOL PROBLEMS

46,600	47,100
--------	--------

Sec. 43. POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY

This appropriation includes an amount not to exceed \$5,000 each year to reimburse the travel expenses of candidates for professional positions, who have been invited by the pollution control agency for interview, in the same manner and in the same amounts as state officers and employees are reimbursed.

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense

734,811	759,228
---------	---------

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 2. Additional special studies 75,000

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Health will continue to render such staff services as agency may require from time to time through health's division of environmental health and division of administrative services, and health is to be reimbursed from this appropriation for the cost thereof.

On or before June 30, 1969, agency through its executive director will make and submit to the governor for approval an interdepartmental agreement, but if agency and health do not so agree at the time required, the matters to be covered by the agreement will be determined by executive order. The matters so to be covered by agreement or order are: (1) adequate exchange between agency and health of information in the health aspects of the work of each; (2) staff services and facilities required by agency to be furnished by health; (3) basis of reimbursement to health for services and facilities to agency. This agreement may be modified from time to time by agency and health with approval of the governor, and by executive order if the arrangement is effected by order, and the agreement or order, as the case may be will be followed by the authorities involved in disbursing this appropriation.

Sec. 44. LIVESTOCK SANITARY BOARD

Subdivision 1. Salaries	472,168	489,723
Approved Complement—49		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	288,000	292,500
Subd. 3. Brand registration	400	350
Subd. 4. Indemnities	75,000	75,000
No payment for less than \$1 for indemnities may be made.		
Subd. 5. Hog cholera indemnities	150,000	
Any unexpended balance remaining in		

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~

the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 6. Field Laboratories 60,000 60,000

For the operation of field laboratories for the testing of poultry, including turkeys, for pullorum and other diseases.

Subd. 7. Contingent account 260,000

The funds appropriated in subdivision 7 shall be transferred to the various accounts of the livestock sanitary board at the request of the executive secretary of the board. Upon receipt of the request, the commissioner of administration shall certify to the state auditor the amounts to be transferred and the accounts into which the funds shall be transferred. Funds so transferred are hereby appropriated.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 45. HUMAN RIGHTS

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense 242,142 245,269

Approved Complement—22

FAIRS Sec. 46. WAR VETERANS AF-

Subdivision 1. Salaries 310,644 322,683

Approved Complement—41

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense 19,200 19,000

Subd. 3. Veterans relief fund 700,000 700,000

The Minnesota public relief advisory committee is hereby continued for the purposes of this subdivision.

The above appropriations may also be expended for the benefit of a person eligible for assistance from the Minnesota veterans' home under Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 198.01 and 198.021 who does not reside at the home, the deserted wife of such a person if worthy, the widow and dependent parents of such a person, if he is not living, and the deserted or

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

orphaned children under 16 years of age of such a person.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

None of the funds appropriated in this subdivision shall be transferred for the use of veterans' rest camps.

Subd. 4. War veterans and war orphans education aid	35,000	40,000
---	--------	--------

To be expended pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 197.75.

Any unexpended balance remaining in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 5. Headstones, markers, and sockets for soldiers and sailors graves	5,000	5,000
---	-------	-------

Sec. 47. STATE LAW LIBRARY

Subdivision 1. Salaries	77,557	79,944
-----------------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—8

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	2,820	2,140
---	-------	-------

Subd. 3. Books and binding	5,000	75,000
--------------------------------------	-------	--------

Subd. 4. Relocation and storage of books	1,500	
--	-------	--

Any unexpended balance remaining in subdivisions 3 and 4 in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Sec. 48. NATURAL RESOURCES ACCELERATION

Subdivision 1. Minnesota Resources Commission	100,000	
---	---------	--

Subd. 2. Department of Economic Development

a. North Star Patrol	50,000	
--------------------------------	--------	--

b. Resort reservation and facility identification system	30,000	
--	--------	--

c. Iron Range interpretive program	75,000	
--	--------	--

Work programs for a, b, and c are to

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

be developed and funds expended in consultation with Minnesota Resources Commission.

d. Lake of the Woods—Rainy Lake research project	25,000
Subd. 3. State Planning Agency	
Water resource state plan	50,000
Subd. 4. Regents of the University of Minnesota	
a. Research in vegetation management in state parks and recreation areas	35,000
b. Study of lakeshore development trends	50,600
c. Land acquisition, Cedar Creek ..	45,650
d. Prehistoric archaeology	38,000
e. Geologic mapping	160,000
f. Limnological research	75,000
g. Soil mapping	40,000
h. Surficial mapping	60,000
Subd. 5. Minnesota Historical Society	
a. Fort Snelling restoration	322,000
b. Historic archaeology	50,000
c. Ramsey Carriage House	35,000
d. Lower Sioux Agency Museum ...	52,000
e. Program survey	24,000
f. Interpretive center research	15,698
g. Connor's Fur Post restoration ...	20,000
h. Kathio Museum Exhibits	17,500
i. Petroglyphs interpretive center ..	9,500
j. Miscellaneous historic sites exhibits and major repairs	14,105
k. Lindbergh interpretive center ...	100,000

Each amount listed is the maximum to be expended from state funds for each project.

Subd. 6. Commissioner of Conservation

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strike-out~~.

a.	Spawning land development	50,000
b.	Tree planting	100,000
c.	Forest roads	100,000
d.	Hydrologic studies	150,000
e.	Vegetation management experi- ment	25,000
f.	Operation Pheasant easement pro- gram	200,000
g.	State Parks capital improvement acceleration	1,745,500

Of this amount, \$920,500 is appro-
priated from the state parks develop-
ment account.

Any federal reimbursements received
for expenditures made from this appro-
priation or from the appropriation made
in Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Section 12,
or Extra Session Laws 1967, Chapter
48, Section 48, Subdivision 7, j, and de-
posited in the state treasury pursuant to
Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 86.71,
are to be deposited in the natural re-
source contingent account and are re-
appropriated for the purposes of that
account.

h.	Wildlife development	250,000
i.	Ground water soil survey—irriga- tion	9,000
Subd. 7. Commissioner of Adminis- tration		
a.	Spawning land acquisition	50,000
b.	Wildlife land easements and ac- quisition, under Minnesota Stat- utes 1967, Sections 97.48, Subdivi- sion 13, and 97.481	500,000
c.	Land acquisition, Minnesota Memorial Hardwood Forest	350,000

Any federal reimbursements received
for expenditures made from this ap-
propriation or from the appropriation
made in Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Sec-
tion 16 (2) or Extra Session Laws
1967, Chapter 48, Section 48, Subdi-
vision 9, d, and deposited in the state
treasury pursuant to Minnesota Statutes

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

1967, Section 86.71, are to be deposited in the natural resource contingent account and are reappropriated for the purposes of that account.

d. Topographic mapping 850,000

To be expended on a matching basis with the U.S. Geological Survey in accordance with priorities to be approved by the state planning agency.

e. Land acquisition for state parks .. 500,000

These funds will be transferred to the state park development account for repayment of state bonds issued as the result of legislation by the 1969 session of the legislature. If a state bond program is not authorized, the \$500,000 authorized under this section shall be deposited in the natural resource contingent account.

Any federal reimbursements received for expenditures made from this appropriation or from the appropriation made in Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Section 11, Subdivision 1, or Extra Session Laws 1967, Chapter 48, Section 48, Subdivision 9, f, and deposited in the state treasury pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 86.71, are to be deposited in the natural resource contingent account and are reappropriated for the purposes of that account.

f. Grants to local units of government

For repair, remodeling, and expansion of existing facilities.

The moneys appropriated to the commissioner of administration by Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Section 9, and Extra Session Laws 1967, Chapter 48, Section 48, Subdivision 9, g, from the natural resources account to properly repair Pine Tree state park and Monson Lake state park are reappropriated for the above purpose for the biennium beginning July 1, 1969.

After conveyance of the following parks to the local communities, the commissioner shall transfer the sum listed for each park subject to the following

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

provisions: one-half upon presentation of qualifying plans, specifications, and job estimates for individual units of work; and the balance upon proof of completion and final inspection.

(1) *Monson Lake state park in*
Swift county \$42,000

(2) Pine Tree state park in
Beltrami county 19,500

g. Grants-in-aid to local units of gov-
ernment 2,500,000

Not more than \$25,000 may be expended for professional services in administration of the grants-in-aid to state and local units of government.

This appropriation is for acquisition and development for recreational projects in accordance with Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Section 21, Subdivision 4, and Section 23, as amended by Extra Session Laws 1967, Chapter 48, Section 48, Subdivision 9, h; for harbors of refuge; and for locally sponsored lake improvement projects by governmental units and non-profit organizations and associations eligible under guidelines established jointly by the state planning agency and the department of conservation.

The state office of urban and local affairs will administer the natural resources and land and water grants-in-aid programs to local units of government.

This appropriation shall be expended with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee as provided by Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 3.30.

The sum of \$1,000,000 of the grant-in-aid program is set aside for regional parks recommended for funding by the Metropolitan Council. If a metropolitan park authority for Scott, Carver, Hennepin, Ramsey, Dakota, Anoka, and Washington counties is created by the 1969 session of the legislature, the governor is authorized to transfer funds from this appropriation upon request from the new agency. This paragraph

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

shall not take effect if funds are made available to a metropolitan park authority or to the metropolitan council from any other state appropriation.

h. Natural resource contingent account

725,000

Reimbursement from the federal land and water conservation fund for expenditures made from this appropriation or from the appropriation made in Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Section 16, or Extra Session Laws 1967, Chapter 48, Section 48, Subdivision 9, i, and deposited in the state treasury pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 86.71, are to be deposited in the natural resource contingent account and are reappropriated for the purposes of that account.

This appropriation is available for professional services, land acquisition, easements, and development for parks, natural areas, historic and archaeological sites, and hardwood forests by the state of Minnesota or the university of Minnesota.

In addition, funds for state participation in dam repairs up to 25 percent of total costs of projects recommended by the commissioner of conservation for Anoka, St. Cloud, and Melrose are authorized from this account, along with a maximum appropriation of \$30,000 to the department of conservation for a report on dams to the 1971 session of the legislature.

- i. The appropriations made under paragraphs g and h above shall be expended with the approval of the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee as provided by Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 3.30.

All requests for allocations from the contingent account must be accompanied by a certification signed jointly by the state planning officer and the bureau of planning of the department of conservation, showing a review of the application against the state recreational plan. Copies of such certification must be submitted to the appropriate legislative committees and commissions

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~

for their information at least 30 days before action by the legislative advisory committee.

j. Project 80—study of the total environment

50,000

These funds shall be transferred to the conservation professional services account and are reappropriated for the work programs of this project. None of these funds shall be expended until the work programs have been reviewed by the Minnesota resources commission.

Subd. 8. Except as otherwise specifically provided, all amounts appropriated in subdivisions 1 to 7 are appropriated from the general fund.

Subd. 9. The appropriations in subdivisions 1 to 7 shall be expended in accordance with the limitations prescribed by Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Section 13, Subdivision 5, and Section 20, and Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 86.53.

Balances remaining on hand on June 30, 1970, from appropriations made in this section shall not cancel but shall be carried forward and available for expenditure during the following fiscal year.

Except as otherwise stated in this section, the unexpended balances of moneys appropriated from the natural resources account by Laws 1965, Chapter 810 and Extra Session Laws 1967, Chapter 48, Section 48, shall cancel into the general fund. Balances reappropriated as otherwise provided for in this section shall not cancel. Moneys appropriated in Laws 1963, Chapter 790, Article VIII, Section 3, and in Laws 1965, Chapter 810, Section 11, Subdivision 1, for land acquisition for parks; Section 13, Subdivision 2, for hydrologic studies and Section 18 (2), for county planning funds and Extra Session Laws 1967, Chapter 48, Section 48, Subdivision 1 to Minnesota resources commission, Subdivision 6, f, Lower Sioux Agency improvements, and Subdivision 6, k, for Hudson Bay Trading Post at Georgetown, Subdi-

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

vision 7, e, for hydrologic studies, and Subdivision 9, f, for land acquisition for state parks shall not cancel.

Subd. 10. a. Conservation professional services

Of the amounts appropriated for the following purposes the amounts indicated shall be transferred to this account and are hereby reappropriated to the commissioner of conservation for professional services, spawning development (subdivision 6, a) \$6,000, forest roads (subdivision 6, c) \$3,000, parks capital improvement acceleration (subdivision 6, g) \$130,000, wildlife development (subdivision 6, h) \$30,000, spawning land acquisition (subdivision 7, a) \$12,500, hardwood forest (subdivision 7, c) \$52,500, state parks (subdivision 7, e) \$10,000, and wildlife land easements and acquisition (subdivision 7, b) \$35,000.

The state auditor shall establish a single control account for the amount made available to the commissioner of conservation for professional services.

b. Administration professional services

Of the amounts appropriated for the following purposes the amounts indicated shall be transferred to this account and are hereby reappropriated to the commissioner of administration for land acquisition expenses, spawning areas (subdivision 7, a) \$7,500, hardwood forest (subdivision 7, c) \$52,500, state parks (subdivision 7, e) \$75,000, and wildlife land easements and acquisition (subdivision 7, b) \$75,000.

The state auditor shall establish a single control account for the amount made available to the commissioner of administration for professional services.

Subd. 11. The departments of administration and conservation shall report quarterly their expenditures from the professional services accounts to the appropriate legislative committees and commissions.

Subd. 12. Within the funds available, the commissioner of administration shall acquire the lands for spawning

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

areas, wildlife areas, hardwood forests and state parks as designated by the commissioner of conservation.

Sec. 49. EMPLOYEES COMPEN-
SATION 175,942.85

To be transferred by the state auditor to the department of labor and industry compensation revolving fund, in payment of obligations incurred by the following agencies in the amounts as indicated:

Administration	\$24,530.12
Agriculture	5,581.69
Attorney General	5.30
Auditor	3,415.58
Civil Service	18.99
Conservation	97,716.75
Criminal Apprehension	688.05
Economic Development	964.74
Health	3,431.01
Human Rights	303.94
Insurance	261.16
Labor and Industry	2,940.64
Livestock Sanitary Board ..	17,404.46
Military Affairs	13,234.05
Public Service	3,778.87
Secretary of State (Motor Vehicle)	498.13
State Planning Agency	15.36
Surveyor General	21.10
Taxation	1,132.91

Of the amount appropriated \$498.13 shall be paid from the highway user tax distribution fund and \$45.27 from the game and fish fund.

Sec. 50. UNEMPLOYMENT COM-
PENSATION 213,069.01

In reimbursement of unemployment

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

compensation benefits paid for former employees of the following:

Agriculture	\$ 4,399.05
Auditor	245.38
Banking	459.70
Civil Defense	2.27
Conservation	200,779.85
Economic Development ..	592.00
Insurance	34.57
Military Affairs	452.00
Public Examiner	483.12
Public Service	393.68
Surveyor General	1,917.25
Taxation	3,310.14

Of the amount appropriated \$31,453.89 shall be paid from the game and fish fund.

Sec. 51. Employees, salary increases. The salaries of all employees, except attorneys appointed by the attorney general, in the unclassified service of the state for which an appropriation is made in this act, whose salary is not herein or otherwise fixed by law, shall be adjusted to the class of persons in the classified service performing comparable work and having comparable responsibility, as determined by the director of civil service but in no event to an amount in excess of the maximum of such class.

Sec. 52. Fees. The fees fixed for the various accounts for which an appropriation is made in this act pursuant to existing authority of law shall be neither increased nor decreased except with the approval of the commissioner of administration. All such fees shall be reviewed at least once each six months, and such adjustments shall be made to the end that the total fees received shall approximate the amount appropriated for the several funds.

Sec. 53. Unobligated balances. The unobligated balance on hand as of June 30, 1969, June 30, 1970, and June 30, 1971, in the several appropriations and accounts for each of the state departments or divisions for which an appropriation is made herein out of the general fund are hereby cancelled into said general fund as of June 30, 1969, June 30, 1970, and June 30, 1971, and the unobligated balances on hand as of June 30, 1969, June 30, 1970, and June

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strike out~~.

30, 1971, appropriated out of any other funds, shall be cancelled into the fund from which they are appropriated as of June 30, 1969, June 30, 1970, and June 30, 1971. The provisions of this section shall not apply where otherwise indicated in this act or to aid, contributions, or reimbursements received from the federal government by the state; and all such federal aid, contributions, or reimbursements are hereby reappropriated for the purpose of supplementing the appropriations herein provided.

Sec. 54. Income placed in general fund. Except as herein otherwise provided, and except as provided in Minnesota Statutes, Sections 16.78 and 85.22, all income, including fees or receipts of any nature whatsoever, except all federal aid, contributions, or reimbursements received for any account of any division or department for which an appropriation is made in this act, shall be deposited in and for the benefit of the general fund.

Sec. 55. Misappropriation of funds. It shall be illegal for any state officer or head of any state department or any employee thereof to use moneys appropriated by this act, or fees collected, for any other purpose than the purpose for which such moneys have been appropriated and any such act by any such person shall be cause for immediate removal from the office or position he holds with the government of the state, provided, however, that funds may be transferred to the credit of the state employees retirement fund and used for the purposes thereof as provided by law.

Sec. 56. Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, no application for non-state funds shall be submitted to federal or other authorities prior to the approval by the governor or his designee of the proposed budget for the expenditure of the funds and the transmittal of copies of the application to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives.

Sec. 57. Transfer of funds, state auditor. The state auditor is hereby authorized and directed to transfer to the general fund in the state treasury, all moneys credited to any fund established in connection with the payment of certificates of indebtedness when the purposes for which the act authorizing such certificates have been accomplished.

Subdivision 1. There is hereby transferred to the general fund the following sums to reimburse the general fund for amounts transferred out of the general contingent fund for the following purposes, for the following years:

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- a. From the state airports account for the department of aeronautics, salaries, for the year ended June 30, 1968 \$ 3,617.00
- b. From the state airports account for the department of aeronautics, supplies and expense, for the year ended June 30, 1968 900.00
- c. From the state airports account for the department of aeronautics, salaries, for the year ending June 30, 1969 10,089.00

Subd. 2. *There is hereby transferred to the general fund for public examiner audit costs, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 16.20, Subdivision 9, which sums have not been paid:*

- a. From the state parks development account for the department of conservation for the fiscal years 1966 and 1967 \$ 499.53

Subd. 3. *There is hereby transferred from the general fund the sum of \$10,888.00 to reimburse the department of highways for expenses incurred in moving the drivers license examining unit from rent-free quarters to leased space, the sum to be transferred to the trunk highway fund.*

Subd. 4. *There is hereby transferred to the general fund the sum of \$992,855.89 to reimburse the general fund for the cost of collecting the tax on gasoline and gasoline substitutes and the cost of bond premiums during the 1967-69 biennium from the highway user tax distribution fund.*

There is hereby transferred to the general fund the sum of \$15,265.32 to correct an underestimate in the cost of collecting the tax on gasoline and gasoline substitutes during the 1965-67 biennium, the sum to be transferred from the highway user tax distribution fund.

There is hereby transferred to the general fund the sum of \$38,831.03 to reimburse the general fund for functions performed by the office of the state treasurer in mailing gas tax refunds during the 1967-69 biennium from the highway user tax distribution fund.

There is hereby transferred from the general fund the sum of \$1,560.43 to correct an overestimate in the cost of mailing gas tax refunds during the 1965-67 biennium, the sum to be transferred to the highway user tax distribution fund.

Subd. 5. *There is hereby transferred to the general fund the following sums, or so much as may be necessary, to reimburse the*

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

general fund for occupancy charges in the centennial building which have not been paid for the following departments for the following years;

- | | | |
|----|--|-------------|
| a. | From the game and fish fund for the department of conservation for the year ended June 30, 1967 | \$ 1,516.02 |
| b. | From the game and fish fund for the department of conservation for the year ended June 30, 1968 | 213.43 |
| c. | From the game and fish fund for the department of conservation for the year ending June 30, 1969 | 800.00 |

Sec. 58. Approved complements. Whenever an appropriation to any state department or agency for salaries discloses an approved complement, that department or agency, except for seasonal and part time employees, is limited in the employment of the number of persons indicated by such approved complement. The employment of seasonal and part time employees shall be in addition to the approved complement but subject to the approval of the commissioner of administration who shall determine the need therefor.

Additional employees over the number of the approved complement may be employed on the basis of public necessity or emergency with the written approval of the governor, but the governor shall not approve such additional personnel until he has consulted with the legislative advisory committee created by Laws 1943, Chapter 594, and such committee has made its recommendation upon the matter. Such recommendation shall be advisory only. Failure or refusal of the committee to make a recommendation promptly shall be deemed a negative recommendation. The provisions hereof shall extend to any other agency to which the present authority of the legislative advisory committee may be transferred, but shall be deemed to be repealed in case such authority shall be abolished.

Sec. 59. Furniture purchased from state reformatory. Provided, insofar as is practicable, all furniture to be purchased by state departments from moneys made available in this act, shall be procured from the state reformatory for men, notwithstanding any other provisions to the contrary.

Sec. 60. Publications by department of administration. Notwithstanding the provisions of Laws 1963, Chapter 100, or any other law relating to the subject matter of this section, the department of administration may continue to publish reports, documents, and related materials of the same nature described in its catalogs of Minnesota state publications.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 61. Any moneys made available to any state department or agency by this act by appropriation, transfer or otherwise for the payment of salaries is a source of revenue to such department or agency under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1967, Sections 355.50 and 352.04, Subdivision 5.

Sec. 62. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, state departments and agencies may, with the approval of the commissioner of administration, leave authorized positions vacant and use the moneys for purchase of interdepartmental tabulating services from the department of administration, division of computer services.

Sec. 63. **[97.48]** **[Subd. 28.]** Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, any moneys appropriated to the commissioner of administration for the acquisition of wildlife land under Minnesota Statutes 1967, Sections 97.48, Subdivision 13, and 97.481, shall be expended in the same manner as similar expenditures are made by the commissioner of conservation under such statutory provisions. In order to qualify for federal Pittman-Robertson funds, the commissioner of administration may transfer any of these moneys to the commissioner of conservation for expenditure for wildlife land acquisition, and any such transfers are hereby reappropriated for such purpose.

Sec. 64. **[15.061]** **Consultant services.** Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, state departments and agencies may, with the approval of the commissioner of administration, use salary appropriations to contract for consultant services in connection with the operation of the departments and agencies. Such contracts shall not be subject to the competitive bidding requirements of Minnesota Statutes 1967, Chapter 16.

Sec. 65. **[84.0271]** **Review of land appraisals by commissioner of conservation.** Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, the department of conservation shall submit for review all appraisals to the commissioner of administration before entering into any options for the acquisition of land.

Sec. 66. **[270.061]** **Service of notice by mail.** Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, whenever the commissioner of taxation is required to serve notices by registered or certified mail, he may at his option make such services by regular mail, retaining for his records adequate proof of such service.

Sec. 67. **[16.02]** **[Subd. 20a.]** Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, state employees shall be reimbursed for

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

noon meals only if they are required to be away from their home stations overnight.

Sec. 68. [16.02] [Subd. 6a.] To maintain and operate the state owned buildings in the capitol complex, the state department of health building, the employment security building, and the grounds appertaining thereto, also, where deemed advisable and practicable by the commissioner, any other building or premises owned or rented by the state for the use of any state department or other administrative agency; provided, that this shall not apply to state hospitals or to educational, penal, correctional, or other institutions the control of which is vested by law in some other agency. The commissioner may purchase and furnish suitable uniforms for employees of the department when, in the opinion of the commissioner, a uniform is desirable and necessary.

Sec. 69. Section 68 is an additional power of the commissioner of administration under Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 16.02.

Sec. 70. [3.101] **Living expenses during session.** A member of the legislature in addition to the compensation and mileage otherwise provided for by law shall be reimbursed for his living and other expenses incurred in the performance of his duties during a regular session, a special session, and when the legislature is not in session in the manner and in such amount as may be prescribed by the senate as to senate members and by the house of representatives as to house members.

Sec. 71. There is hereby appropriated \$21,000 for each year of the biennium to the department or agency to which the enforcement provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1967, Sections 325.64 to 325.76, are assigned.

Sec. 72. [16.026] [Subd. 8.] **Combined report.** Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the commissioner of administration may combine and consolidate into a single report any or all of the annual or biennial reports of the various departments and agencies. Any department or agency whose report is included in the combined report shall not issue a separate report.

Sec. 73. [16.026] [Subd. 9.] **Date submitted.** Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, the biennial reports required to be submitted to the legislature by various departments and agencies shall be submitted by November 15 of each even numbered year.

Sec. 74. The state archivist is instructed to present to the

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

1971 session of the legislature his recommendations in connection with an improved record retention program for the state. Such recommendation shall be developed with a view toward destruction of records after an appropriate time, and to accelerate the record management program set forth in Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 138.17, Subdivision 7.

Sec. 75. **Compulsory retirement exclusion.** Notwithstanding any provision of laws to the contrary, a physician in the classified or unclassified state service may upon reaching the age of 70 years continue to be employed in the department of health subject to annual certification by the state board of health.

Sec. 76. In addition to other duties assigned by law, the Great Lakes compact commission will during the 1969-71 biennium review the programs and activities of the Upper Great Lakes regional commission and the Great Lakes basin commission and report to the legislature no later than November 15, 1970, its recommendations for coordination of the activities of these commissions.

Sec. 77. Laws 1969, Chapter 481, Section 2, is hereby repealed.

Sec. 78. **[16.155] Budget estimates and information, inclusion in governor's budget.** Subdivision 1. The commissioner of administration shall transmit a copy of the budget estimates and accompanying information for the biennial budget as submitted by each department or agency to the commissioner in accordance with Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 16.14, to the committee on finance of the senate and to the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives on or before the 15th day of November preceding the convening of a regular session of the legislature.

Subd. 2. The budget to the legislature submitted by the governor in accordance with Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 16.15, shall include the budget request of each department or agency arranged in tabular form so it may readily be compared with the governor's budget for each department or agency.

Sec. 79. **[16.138] Reimbursements to state agencies.** Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, reimbursements received by departments or agencies for services performed by other state agencies for which they are not billed shall be transferred for deposit into the general fund. Departments or agencies shall report such reimbursements to the commissioner of administration when the reimbursement is received. The commissioner after review shall certify the amount of such reimbursements to the state au-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

ditor and shall report such reimbursements to the committee on finance of the senate and the committee on appropriations of the house of representatives. Upon certification the state auditor shall transfer to the general fund such amounts from such accounts as the commissioner may designate.

Sec. 80. Subdivision 1. There is appropriated from any money in the game and fish fund during the biennium ending June 30, 1971, the sum of \$1,100,000 for use by the department for new conservation programs in deer management, upland game and waterfowl development, and game fish management.

Subd. 2. Of the appropriations made in subdivision 1, the sum of \$600,000 shall be for the purpose of improving deer habitat. No less than 20 percent of this sum shall be for expenditure on private lands pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 97.48, Subdivision 27. The remaining deer habitat funds are to provide personnel, day labor, salaries, wages, supplies, equipment, and expenses solely related to deer habitat improvement on both private and public lands.

Subd. 3. Of the appropriation made in subdivision 1, the sum of \$250,000 shall be for the purpose of improving habitat for upland game and waterfowl. No less than 20 percent of this sum shall be for expenditure on private lands pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 97.48, Subdivision 27, or the acquisition of wildlife lands pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 97.481. The acquisition of such lands, however, shall not be limited to waterfowl habitat. The remaining upland game and waterfowl habitat funds are to provide personnel, day labor, salaries, wages, supplies, equipment, and expenses solely related to improving upland game and waterfowl habitat on private and public land.

Subd. 4. Of the appropriation made in subdivision 1, the sum of \$250,000 shall be for the purpose of improving natural fish habitat, increasing the supply of fish for stocking and for fish population control work. Habitat improvement shall include, but not be limited to, development of streams to improve trout fishing, and development of spawning areas for walleyes.

Subd. 5. The department of conservation is hereby instructed to report to the legislature no later than January 30, 1971, concerning the expenditure of the funds appropriated herein, with a detailed breakdown of all salaries, supplies, and equipment, together with private land expenditures.

Sec. 81. **Interstate pest control compact.** There is hereby

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

appropriated to the commissioner of agriculture from any funds in the state treasury not otherwise appropriated the sum of \$29,000 for the biennium ending June 30, 1971, for the state's contribution to the compact.

Sec. 82. That the description of the lands to be conveyed by the state under Laws 1969, Chapter 581, is hereby corrected to read:

The following tracts or parcels of land lying and being in the county of Anoka, state of Minnesota, described as follows, to-wit:

The Southwest Quarter (SW 1/4), and the Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter (SW 1/4 NW 1/4) of Section 30, Township 32 North, Range 24 West, and Government Lots 1 and 2, of Section 25, Township 32 North, Range 25 West.

Sec. 83. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law enacted at the 1969 regular session of the legislature the approved complement of the safety division of the department of highways shall be 905 for 1970 and 925 for 1971.

Sec. 84. There is hereby appropriated \$100,000 to the commissioner of administration from the general fund for the year ending June 30, 1971. This appropriation is available for salaries, supplies, expenses, and contractual services for the conservation and maintenance of any state owned building that is vacated by any state department or agency.

Sec. 85. Any appropriation made by the 1969 legislature for the construction of a science building at Mankato state college and for the expansion of a technology center at Southwest state college includes funds for equipping.

Sec. 86. When a retired district judge serves, in addition to his retirement compensation, he shall be paid the sum of \$35 per day plus nine cents per mile and his actual expenses. The amounts provided for herein are in lieu of the amounts provided for in Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 484.62. In the next edition of Minnesota Statutes, the revisor of statutes shall change the provisions of such section 484.62 to conform with the provisions of this section.

Sec. 87. [414.01] Subdivision 1. [Subd. 6a.] Each member of the municipal commission shall receive \$50 per day when in attendance at commission meetings or hearings, or when otherwise engaged in the performance of his duties, and the county commissioners shall be paid \$25 per day for each hearing or meeting attended. The county auditors and commissioners shall be deemed to be performing duties for the county without additional compensation when

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

serving as *ex officio* members of the commission. Each member of the commission shall be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in accordance with regulations relative to travel and expenses of state officers and employees.

Subd. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 414.01, Subdivision 6, is repealed and subdivision 1 is in lieu of such repealed section.

Sec. 88. [414.01] Subdivision 1. [Subd. 7a.] The municipal commission shall appoint a secretary, not a member of the commission, who shall be learned in the law and receive a salary in an amount fixed by law. He shall devote full time to the duties of his office. All correspondence and petitions shall be addressed to the secretary who shall be charged with conducting the administrative affairs of the commission, notifying the members of hearings, and making arrangements for hearings as to time and place, giving proper notice in the areas affected as hereinafter provided, keeping records and minutes, and providing secretarial service.

Subd. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 414.01, Subdivision 7, is repealed and subdivision 1 of this section is in lieu of such repealed section.

Sec. 89. Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 526.181, is repealed.

Sec. 90. Subdivision 1. The annual salaries of the public officials and employees named in this section, payable from appropriations made from this act or any other appropriation law for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1969, and thereafter, shall be as prescribed in this section. The salaries prescribed shall be effective with the beginning of the first payroll period commencing on or after July 1, 1969.

Subd. 2. Attorney General Staff.

Deputy Attorney General	\$22,000
Solicitor General	21,000
Assistant Attorney General, fixed by the Attorney General, depending upon experience	10,000 to 20,000

The Deputy Attorney General assigned to the Department of Highways shall be paid from the trunk highway fund.

Subd. 3. Major Department Heads.

Commissioner of Administration	\$25,000
--------------------------------------	----------

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Commissioner of Agriculture	20,000
Commissioner of Highways	24,000
Secretary & Executive Officer, Department of Health	23,000
Commissioner of Taxation	24,000
Commissioner of Public Welfare	23,500
Commissioner of Employment Security	21,000
Commissioner of Education	23,500
Commissioner of Conservation	23,000
Commissioner of Corrections	23,000
Director, State Civil Service	23,000
Subd. 4. Deputies of Departments, Division and Agency Heads, Other Department Heads, Assistants.	
Executive Director, Minnesota Higher Education Coordinating Commission	\$23,500
Deputy Commissioner of Agriculture	15,000
Deputy Commissioner of Conservation	18,500
Deputy Commissioner of Corrections (2)	18,500
Labor Conciliator	18,500
Commissioner of Human Rights	17,000
Director, Pollution Control Agency	21,000
Director, Public Service Department	17,500
Clerk of Supreme Court	16,500
Executive Director, Indian Affairs Commission ..	15,000
Deputy Clerk of Supreme Court	13,500
Administrative Assistant of Supreme Court	24,000
Assistant Revisor of Statutes	21,000
Special Assistant to Revisor of Statutes	10,000 to 20,000

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Executive Secretary, Board of Investment	25,000
Executive Secretary, Minnesota State Retirement System	18,000
Executive Secretary, Teachers Retirement Association	18,000
Executive Secretary, State Soil and Water Conservation Commission	12,000
Executive Secretary, Governor's Commission on Employment of Handicapped Persons	12,000
Administrative Secretary, Water Resources Board	12,000
Revisor of Statutes	24,500
Assistant Public Defender	17,500
Secretary to Commissioner of Highways	13,000
Executive Director, Commission on Alcohol Problems	12,000
Secretary, Public Service Commission	13,000
Executive Secretary, Peace Officers Training Board	13,000
Commissioner of Aeronautics	17,000
Assistant Commissioner of Conservation	17,500
Commissioner of Banking	19,000
Director of Lands and Forestry	17,000
Public Defender	22,000
Director of Game and Fish	17,000
Director of Waters, Soils and Minerals	17,000
Director of Enforcement and Field Service	17,000
Commissioner of Insurance	19,000
Liquor Control Commissioner	17,500
Secretary & Executive Officer, Livestock Sanitary Board	18,500

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Public Examiner	21,000
State Law Librarian	15,500
Commissioner of Securities	19,000
Commissioner of Economic Development	21,000
Superintendent, Bureau of Criminal Apprehension	17,500
Workmen's Compensation Commissioner (3) ...	18,000
Workmen's Compensation Referees	16,000
Commissioner of Labor and Industry	18,000
Commissioner of Veterans Affairs	15,000
Director of Civil Defense	15,000
Director of Parks and Recreation	17,000
Commissioner of Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation	15,000
Commandant, Minnesota Veterans Home	17,000
Deputy Commissioner of Economic Development	17,000
Secretary, Municipal Commission	14,500
Adjutant General, the pay and allowances prescribed by the Armed Forces of the United States for similar rank and grade	

Subd. 5. Heads of State Institutions.

Superintendent, State Reformatory for Men	\$19,500
Warden, Minnesota State Prison	19,500
Superintendent, State Training School for Boys	17,000
Superintendent, Minnesota Correctional Institution for Women	17,000
Superintendent, Minnesota Home School	17,000
Superintendent, Anoka State Hospital	19,500
Superintendent, Brainerd State Hospital	19,500

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Superintendent, Cambridge State Hospital	19,500
Superintendent, Faribault State Hospital	19,500
Superintendent, Fergus Falls State Hospital	19,500
Superintendent, Hastings State Hospital	19,500
Superintendent, Moose Lake State Hospital	19,500
Superintendent, Rochester State Hospital	19,500
Superintendent, St. Peter State Hospital	19,500
Superintendent, Willmar State Hospital	19,500
Superintendent, Ah-Gwah-Ching Nursing Home	19,000
Superintendent, Glen Lake State Sanatorium and Oak Terrace Nursing Home	19,000
Superintendent, Braille and Sight Saving School	16,500
Superintendent, School for the Deaf	16,500
Superintendent, Gillette State Hospital	16,500

Subd. 6. In compiling the next edition of Minnesota Statutes, the revisor shall insert the positions described and their salaries in the appropriate sections and subdivisions. He shall strike from such chapter positions that no longer exist and add to such chapter positions that are created in this section.

Sec. 91. There is hereby appropriated from any funds in the state treasury to the commissioner of administration the sum of \$500,000 for the biennium ending June 30, 1971, for the purpose of financing the salary adjustments of agency and department heads and other individuals whose salaries are set in section 90. The commissioner shall from time to time certify such funds as he determines are necessary to finance those adjustments that cannot be financed within the funds appropriated to the department or agency. Upon certification the state auditor shall transfer such funds to such accounts as the commissioner may designate. Funds so transferred are hereby reappropriated to the accounts to which they are transferred.

Sec. 92. There is appropriated to the commissioner of administration from the appropriate funds in the state treasury such sums as may be necessary to pay increases in compensation of officers in the judicial, executive, and legislative branches of the state government,

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

all in the unclassified service, if such salary increases are otherwise authorized by law during the 1969 session of the legislature. The appropriation made by this section is for the biennium beginning July 1, 1969 and the commissioner shall certify the necessary amounts to the state auditor. Upon certification the state auditor shall transfer to the appropriate accounts from such funds as the commissioner shall certify and such funds are reappropriated.

Approved June 9, 1969.

CHAPTER 1140—H. F. No. 552

[Coded in Part]

An act relating to the state of Minnesota; regulating the interchange of government employees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1967, Sections 15.52, Subdivisions 2 and 3; 15.53, Subdivision 1, and 15.56, by adding subdivisions.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 15.52, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **State government; interchange of government employees.** “Sending agency” means any department, *political subdivision* or agency of the federal government or a state government which sends any employee thereof to another government agency under sections 15.51 to 15.57.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 15.52, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. “Receiving agency” means any department, *political subdivision* or agency of the federal government or a state government which receives an employee of another government *agency* under sections 15.51 to 15.57.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1967, Section 15.53, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

15.53 **Authority to interchange employees.** Subdivision 1. ~~Any~~ *No* department, agency, *political subdivision* or instrumentality of the state is authorized to participate in a program of interchange of employees with departments, agencies, or instrumentalities

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.